

王琪 上海交通大学高等教育研究院（兼职）助理研究员，波士顿学院(Boston College) 国际高等教育中心研究人员， ALLEX 基金会(Alliance for Language Learning and Education Exchange Foundation)管理与研究副主任。她于 2002-2008 年期间从英国巴斯大学(University of Bath)教育学系先后获得硕士学位和博士学位。2009 年 5 月起加入上海交通大学世界一流大学研究中心。其研究领域包括世界一流大学建设、大学生就业能力构建、全球化与教育发展。她目前的研究集中于基于理论和比较视角下的一流大学建设。

Qi Wang is an assistant professor at the Graduate School of Education (GSE), Shanghai Jiao Tong University (SJTU) and research fellow at the Center for International Higher Education, Boston College. She completed her MA and PhD studies at the Department of Education, University of Bath, UK, from September 2002 to November 2008. She joined SJTU in May 2009 and works at the Centre for World-Class Universities. Her research interests include building world-class universities, employability management and skill training, and globalization and education development. In particular, her current research focuses on building world-class research universities from a theoretical and comparative perspective; in particular how different governments and universities in East Asia and Europe adopt policies to implement this global aspiration. She also works as Associate Director for Administration and Research at the ALLEX Foundation (Alliance for Language Learning and Education Exchange), focusing on developing strategy for Mainland China operations.

## CURRICULUM VITAE

### Qi Wang

1 Sandas Trail, Acton, MA 01720  
978-822-0866 qwmichelle@gmail.com

## PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

*2015-present*

### ***Boston College***

Research Fellow, Center for International Higher Education

- Research and publish on matters related to international higher education.

*2015-present*

### ***Shanghai Jiao Tong University, China***

Adjunct Assistant Professor, Center for World-Class Universities, Graduate School of Education

Associate Editor, *Journal of International Education*

- Participate in strategic projects on matters of international higher education policy, institutional research.
- Responsible for editing *Journal of International Education*.
- Supervising postgraduate students.
- Coordinating International Conference on World-Class Universities (biannual event), and responsible for editing and publishing conference proceedings.

*2014-present*

### ***ALLEX Foundation (Alliance for Language Learning and Educational Exchange)***

Associate Director for Administration and Institutional Research

- Manage China operations of U.S.-based 501(c)(3) international education provider.
- Responsible for student recruitment, institutional partnerships, and some financial operations.
- Conduct institutional research for foundation and use data to drive organization strategy and student success.
- Student support specialist for intensive summer training program and two-year teacher placement experience.

2009-2015

**Shanghai Jiao Tong University, China**

Assistant Professor, Center for World-Class Universities, Graduate School of Education

Associate Editor, *Journal of International Education*

- Responsible for developing policy research on world-class/research universities.
- Responsible for editing *Journal of International Education*.
- Teach postgraduate courses “Comparative Higher Education” and “English for Academic Purposes (for Education Major)”.
- Supervising postgraduate students.

2005-2008

**University of Bath, Department of Education, UK**

Research Assistant

- Responsible for assisting Dr. Trevor Grimshaw’s project “Chinese Learners’ Perceptions and Constructions of British Academic Culture” funded by the British Academy.
- Responsible for assisting Dr. John Lowe’s project “Chinese students’ motivations for going to university” funded by the Economic and Social Research Council.

2005-2006

**University of Bath, Faculty of Humanities and Social Science, UK**

Teaching Assistant

- Assist Dr. Jill Porter’s courses “Quantitative Research Methods”.

**EDUCATION**

2003-2008

**University of Bath, Bath, UK**

*Ph.D. in Education Policy*, specialization: globalization, education and national development

2002-2003

**University of Bath, Bath, UK**

*M.A. in Education* (International Education), specialization: internationalization of higher education

1998-2002

**University of Shanghai for Science and Technology, Shanghai, China**

*B.A. in English* (Finance and Investment)

**FUNDED RESEARCH**

January 2014 – December 2018

Ministry of Education project “Young Faculty in Leading Research Universities: Career Dilemmas and Coping Strategies”

A three-year grant from Ministry of Education probes young faculty’s career development in leading research universities in China in the context of academic employment reform. The research questions particularly focus on how young academics, as a reflexive individual, cope with their career opportunities and challenges. As the principal researcher, I am responsible for research design, data collection and writing up the final project reports.

September 2013 – December 2018

Shanghai Municipal Education Committee project “Hiring Mechanism for Young Faculty in Leading Research Universities: A Comparative Studies in BRICS countries”

A three-year grant from Shanghai Municipal Education Committee explores hiring mechanism for young faculty members in world-class research universities in BRICS countries, including employment process, employment requirements and criteria. As the principal researcher, I am responsible for research design, data collection and writing up the final project reports.

January 2010 – December 2011

National Science Committee project “Research University Competitiveness: History and Development”

A two-year grant from Chinese National Science Committee analyses research universities’ history in the past and development and competition in this global era. Compare research universities in China with their counterparts around the world. As one of the key researchers in the project, I am responsible for two sub-theme research and the writing up and editing of the final project reports.

## **SELECT PUBLICATIONS**

### Journal Articles

Wang, Q. (2018). World Class 2.0 and internationalization in Chinese higher education. *Forum: (Inter)national Policies and Politics*, Summer 2018.

Wang, Q. (2017). Comment: World Class 2.0: Continuation for academic excellence building in Mainland China. *Nature*, 545(7655): s53 (May 25 2017).

Wang, Q. and Liu, N.C. (2014). Higher education research institutes in Chinese universities. *Studies in Higher Education*, 39(8): 1488-1498.

Stanfield, D. and Wang, Q. (2013). Branch campuses in China. *International Higher Education*, The quarterly publication of CIHE. Fall 69: 13-15.

Altbach, P.G. and Wang, Q. (2012). The shaping of Chinese higher education and science. *Scientific American*, 307(4): 46-47.

Wang, Q. (2012). China’s elite sector and national projects. *International briefs for Higher Education Leaders*, No.1 2012. Washington, DC: American Council on Education.

Wang, Q. (2011). A discussion on the 985 Project from a comparative perspective. *Chinese Education and Society*, 44(5): 41-57.

Wang, Q. and Lowe, J. (2011). Personal management of the transition from university to employment in the knowledge-based sector in Shanghai. *Journal of Education and Work*, 24(1-2): 119-140.

Wang, Q. (2010). Post-compulsory Education and Training in China. *International Higher Education*, The quarterly publication of CIHE. Summer 60: 8-9.

Deng, Q.Q., Wang, Q. & Liu, N.C. (2010). National Initiatives for Building World-Class Universities: Comparison between Asian and European Experiences. *Higher Education Forum*, Vol. 7. Research Center for Higher Education of Hiroshima University.

Wang, Q., Cheng, Y. and Liu, N.C. (2009). World-Class University from an International Perspective” (in Chinese). *Chinese Higher Education*, 2009 (24).

### Chapters in Edited Books

Wang, Q. (2018). International academic mobility in Asia. In Sin, J.C. and Teixeira, P.N. (eds.) *Encyclopedia of International Higher Education Systems and Institutions*. Dordrecht: Springer.

Wang, Q. (2017). A differentiated post-secondary education system in Mainland China. In Altbach, P.G., Reisberg, L. and de Wit, H. (eds.) *Responding to Massification Differentiation in Postsecondary Education Worldwide*. Körber Foundation.

Wang, Q., Li, Y. and Liu, N.C. (2015). Entering academia: New faculty in higher education in Mainland China. In Yudkevich, M., Altbach, P.G. and Rumbley, L. (eds.) *Young Faculty in the 21st Century: Academic Career Opportunities and Challenges around the World*. New York: State University of New York Press.

Wang, Q. and Cheng, Y. (2014). Reflections on the effects of the 985 Project in Mainland China. In Cheng, Y., Wang, Q. and Liu, N.C. (eds.) *How World-Class Universities Affect Global Higher Education*. Rotterdam: Sense Publishers.

Wang, Q. and Liu, N.C. (2013). Development and prospect of world-class universities in East Asia and beyond. In Maldonado Maldonado, A. and Bassett, R. (Eds.), *The Forefront of International Higher Education*. Dordrecht: Springer.

Wang, Q.H., Wang, Q. and Liu, N.C. (2011). Building world-class universities in China: Shanghai Jiao Tong University. In Altbach, P.G. and Salmi, J. (Eds.) *The Road to Academic Excellence*. Washington, DC: the World Bank.

### Books

Wu, Y., Wang, Q. and Liu, N.C. (eds.) (2018). *World-Class Universities: Towards a Global Common Good and Seeking National and Institutional Contributions*. Leiden/Boston: Brill/Sense Publisher.

Liu, N.C., Cheng, Y. and Wang, Q. (eds.) (2016). *Matching Visibility and Performance: A Standing Challenge for World-Class Universities*. Rotterdam: Sense Publishers.

Cheng, Y., Wang, Q. and Liu, N.C. (eds.) (2014). *How World-Class Universities Affect Global Higher Education*. Rotterdam: Sense Publishers.

Wang, Q., Cheng, Y. and Liu, N.C. (eds.) (2013). *Building World-Class Universities: Different Approaches to a Shared Goal*. Rotterdam: Sense Publishers.

Xu, Z.H. and Wang, Q. (2012). *World-Class Universities in Germany* (in Chinese). Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University Press.

Wang, Q., Feng, Z.L. and Liu, N.C. (eds.) (2012). *Developing Research Universities' International Competitiveness for Achieving the Goal of an Innovative Country*. Beijing: China Renmin University Press.

Zheng, J.T. and Wang, Q. (2012). *World-Class Universities in U.K.* (in Chinese). Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University Press.

Rao, Y.T. and Wang, Q. (2011). *World-Class Universities in U.S.A.* (in Chinese). Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University Press.

Wang, Q., Cheng, Y. and Liu, N.C. (2011) (eds.) *World-Class University: National Strategies and Institutional Practices* (in Chinese). Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University Press.

Liu, N.C., Wang, Q. and Cheng, Y. (2011) (eds.) *Paths to a World-Class University*. Global Perspectives in Higher Education, Vol. 43. Rotterdam: Sense Publishers.

### Translated Books

Yudkevich, M., Altbach, P.G. and Rumbley, L. (eds.) (2017). *The Global Academic Rankings Game: Changing Institutional Policy, Practice, and Academic Life*. London: Routledge. Translator: Miao, Y. and Wang, Q. Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University (forthcoming).

Bastedo, M.N., Altbach, P.G. and Gumport, P.J. (eds.) (2016). *American Higher Education in the Twenty-First Century: Social, Political, and Economic Challenges* (4<sup>th</sup> ed). Baltimore: Johns Hopkins University Press. Translator: Zhang, L. and Wang, Q. Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University Press (forthcoming).

Yudkevich, M., Altbach, P.G. and Rumbley, L. (eds.) (2015). *Young Faculty in the 21st Century: Academic Career Opportunities and Challenges around the World*. New York: State University of New York Press. Translator: Jiang, F. and Wang, Q. Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University Press.

Altbach, P.G. (2013). *The International Imperative in Higher Education*. Rotterdam: Sense Publishers. Translator: Chen, P., Zhang, L. and Wang, Q. Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University Press.

Altbach, P.G., Reisberg, L., Yudkevich, M., Androushchak, G. and Pacheco, I.F. (2012). *Paying the Professoriate: A Global comparison of Compensation and Contracts*. London: Routledge. Translators: Xu, H. and Wang, Q. Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University Press.

Altbach, P.G. and Salmi, J. (eds.) (2011) *The Road to Academic Excellence*. Washington, DC: the World Bank. Translators: Wang, Q.H., Wang, Q. and Zhou, X.Y. Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University Press.

Salmi, J. (2009). *The Challenges of Building World-Class University*. Washington DC: World Bank. <http://siteresources.worldbank.org/EDUCATION/Resources/.../WCU.pdf>. Translators: Sun, W. and Wang, Q. Shanghai: Shanghai Jiao Tong University Press.

#### Journal Special Issue

Liu, N.C. and Wang, Q. (eds.) (2011). Building World-Class Universities in China: A Dream Come True? *Chinese Education and Society*, 44(5) special issue.

#### Conference Papers

Wang, Q. (2015). Building world-class universities in Mainland China and its national initiatives: Implementation, impact and trend. *The 64th Midwest Conference on Asian Affairs*. St. Louis, 16-18 October, 2015.

Wang, Q. (2012). On the way to “world-class”: Chinese universities in the Academic Ranking of World Universities. Academic Cooperation Association Seminar: *Higher Education in China and Hong Kong: Recent developments and relations with Europe*. Brussels, 7 December 2012.

Wang, Q. (2012). Career opportunities and challenges for young faculty at Chinese research universities. *The Third International Conference of the Russian Association of Higher Education Researchers*, Moscow, Russia.

Wang, Q. (2012). China’s elite sector and national projects. *China: Emerging Opportunities and Challenges in Higher Education Cooperation*, American Council of Education Webinar, April 26 2012.

Wang, Q. (2011). Building world-class universities and governance reform in China: an analysis of the 985 project. *11<sup>th</sup> UKFIET International Conference on Education and Development*, Oxford, UK.

Wang, Q. (2011). A comparative analysis of different national initiatives for building world-class universities. *Comparative and International Education Society 2011 Annual Conference*, Montreal, Canada.

- Wang, Q. (2010). An introduction to Academic Ranking of World Universities. *The First International Conference of the World 100 Reputation Network*, Hong Kong.
- Wang, Q. and Lowe, J. (2010). Young people's management of the transition from education to employment in the knowledge-based sector in Shanghai. *American Educational Research Association 2010 Annual Meeting*, Denver, USA.
- Wang, Q. and Liu, N.C. (2009). Building World-Class Universities in Mainland China. *The Third World-Class University Conference*, Shanghai, China.
- Wang, Q. (2009). Internationalization of Higher Education and Building World-class universities in Mainland China: a Case of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. *Alliance for International Education Shanghai Gathering 2009*, Shanghai, China.
- Wang, Q. (2007). Perceptions of the labour market in Shanghai and their implications for education and training. *UKFIET 'Oxford' International Conference on Education and Development*, Oxford, UK.
- Wang, Q. (2007). "A real story of doing a PhD – the development of my literature review". The Student Conference " *Research Education: Different Ways of Knowing and Doing*", School of Education, University of Birmingham, UK.